
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, September 20, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements  
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held August 16, 2021 
• Executive Session held August 16, 2021 

b. Approve to Ratify Letter of Support to Dawsonville History Museum for Grant Funding 
c. Approve to Ratify Letter of Support to Chamber of Commerce for Grant Funding   
d. Approve 2022 Solid Waste Collection Contract with Red Oak Sanitation 
e. Approve Annual City Hall Closure for Mountain Moonshine Festival 

8. Safety Grant Funds Presentation 
9. Employee Recognition 

10. Award Announcement – Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting FY 2020 
 

BUSINESS 
 

11. 54th Annual Mountain Moonshine Festival Plan Review 
12. Budget Amendment – Preparation of an Estimated Budget Document for Elliott Field Airport 
13. Appalachian Regional Commission (ARC) Grant for Downtown Strategic Plan 

 

WORK SESSION 
 

14. 2022 Meeting Calendar Review 
15. Naming Private Roads in City Hall Complex 
16. COVID-19 Vaccination Incentives for Employees 
17. Maple Hill Drive Detention Pond  
18. Updated Fee Schedule Review 

 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

19. Bob Bolz, City Manager 
20. Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator 

 
     ADJOURNMENT   
 

 
The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, October 4, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should 
contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held August 16, 2021 
• Executive Session held August 16, 2021 

b. Approve to Ratify Letter of Support to Dawsonville History Museum for Grant Funding 
c. Approve to Ratify Letter of Support to Chamber of Commerce for Grant Funding  
d. Approve 2022 Solid Waste Collection Contract with Red Oak Sanitation 
e. Approve City Hall Closure on October 22, 2021 for Mountain Moonshine Festival 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 
 

• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD AUGUST 16, 2021 
• EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD AUGUST 16, 2021 

 
 

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, August 16, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember William Illg, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City Manager 
Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Planning Director David Picklesimer, Finance Administrator 
Robin Gazaway and Utilities Crew Chief Blake Croft.   
 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and Pledge were led by Councilmember Illg. 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Eason announced the next Food Truck Friday will be held on 
September 3, 2021 and he also reminded the public that this week is qualifying for two 
Councilmember seats, Post #2 and Post #4. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to amend the agenda to remove item #11 made by J. 
Walden; second by W.  Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

Motion to amend the agenda to add item #21 Review 2021 Moonshine Festival Plan made by J. 
Walden; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

Motion to approve agenda as amended made by J. Walden; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  None 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a) made by M. 
French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held August 2, 2021 

 

8. EMPLOYEE RECOGNTION:  City Manager Bolz announced Jacob Barr was chosen as the July 2021 
Employee of the Month but could not be present at the meeting.  Bolz also introduced the newest 
Utility Department employee, David Schuette.  

 

9. GEORGIA STATE PATROL POST #37 – PRESENTATION OF DONATION:  City Manager Bolz 
stated the Council had already approved a resolution for a donation of specialty equipment to the 
Georgia State Patrol.  Sgt. Bradshaw from GSP Post #37 was at the Council meeting to accept the 
items.   

 

BUSINESS 
 

10. PROCLAMATION – LLOYD SEAY DAY, SEPTEMBER 2, 2021:  Cody Dinsmore stated the 
importance of honoring Lloyd Seay on the 80th anniversary of his death.  Mayor Eason read the 
proclamation and presented it to Cody Dinsmore.   

 

11. SPECIAL EVENT ALCOHOL PERMIT – GOOD SHEPHERD’S CLINIC, SEPTEMBER 12, 2021: 
Removed from agenda 

 

12. SPECIAL EVENT ALCOHOL PERMIT – BREW CREW, OCTOBER 22-24, 2021:  City Manager Bolz 
gave an overview of the request.  The applicant, Stephen Stone, spoke to the City Council briefly 
explaining his plan to serve beer and wine during the Moonshine Festival.  Discussion occurred 
between the applicant and the City Council regarding the delivering and picking up of the alcohol and 
the presence of law enforcement.  Attorney Tallant stated this is permitted under the City’s ordinance 
with the Council’s approval.  

 

Motion to table the agenda item until the September, 20 2021 City Council meeting made by W. Illg; 
second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   
 
 
 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, August 16, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

13. ZA C2100238: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE HAS REQUESTED A ZONING AMENDMENT FOR TMP 
090 031 001 LOCATED AT 1192 HIGHWAY 136 WEST, LAND LOT 171 4TH DISTRICT, 
CONSISTING OF 0.17 ACRES, FROM PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT) TO 
INST (INSTITUTIONAL DISTRICT).  PUBLIC HEARING DATES:  PLANNING COMMISSION ON 
JULY 12, 2021 AND CITY COUNCIL ON AUGUST 2, 2021.  CITY COUNCIL FOR A DECISION ON 
AUGUST 16, 2021:  Planning Director Picklesimer read the rezoning request.   

 

Motion to approve the zoning request as presented made by C. Phillips; second by W. Illg.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.  

 

14. BUDGET AMENDMENT – GORDON PIRKLE ROOM CATERING KITCHEN FLOOR:  Motion to 
approve a $6,000 budget amendment from General Fund Reserves and to award the job to Hill 
Concrete made by C. Phillips; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

15. FY2022 LOCAL MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENT GRANT (LMIG):  Motion to approve the LMIG 
FY 2022 project application and the 30% match made by C. Phillips; second by J. Walden.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.  
 

16. ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTION PROJECT – CHANGE ORDER REQUEST:  
Motion to approve the change order request in the amount of $103,915.33 to be paid out of SPLOST 
VI to Blount Construction for the Roadway Improvements project made by M. French; second by J. 
Walden.  Councilmember Illg asked if this project would need to be re-bid; Attorney Tallant stated it 
does not.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.    

 

17. INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH DAWSON COUNTY – HOWSER MILL ROAD 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT:  Motion to approve the IGA with Dawson County as presented made by 
W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. (Exhibit “A”) 

 

WORK SESSION 
 

18. THE PLACE OF DAWSON COUNTY – PRESENTATION BY AMY PALMER:  The Director of 
Purposeful Engagement, Jacob Granados with The Place of Forsyth County and Dawson County, 
provided an overview of the services they have available and provide to the residents of Forsyth and 
Dawson County.  

 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

19. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  City Manager Bolz reported seven properties received leak 
adjustments totaling $1,212.06. His detailed report was provided in the packet.  No questions from 
Council. 
 

20. ROBIN GAZAWAY, FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR:  Financial reports representing fund balances and 
activity provided through July 31, 2021.  No questions from Council. 

 

ADDITIONAL BUSINESS 
 

21. REVIEW 2021 MOONSHINE FESTIVAL PLAN:  Mayor Eason reported the City is awaiting some 
documentation to determine if issues with surrounding local businesses in proximity to City Hall will 
be able to conduct business during the Moonshine Festival.  He stated he anticipates this to be in 
order before the next City Council meeting scheduled for September 20, 2021.  Councilmember 
French inquired whether the Council was attempting to rescind the permit approval pending the 
additional documentation; Mayor Eason stated no but it is in review with the expectation of the 
additional documentation to be provided at the September 20th meeting.  Councilmember French 
stated he understood the City Council approved the permit as presented; Mayor Eason agreed but 
stated they had not provided the surrounding property owner statements as requested.  Rhonda 
Evans and Tiffany Buchan spoke to the Council about the difficulties of getting written permission 
from the corporate offices of the businesses.  There is concern about delivery trucks being able to 
enter and exit Food Lion without issue.  
 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, August 16, 2021 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

 At 5:55 p.m. a motion to close regular session and go into executive session for potential litigation 
was made by J. Walden; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

 At 6:05 p.m. a motion to close executive session was made by C. Phillips; second by J. Walden.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.  

 

ADJOURNMENT:   
 

At 6:06 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by J. Walden; second by W. Illg.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  

 

 
Approved this 20th day of September 2021. 
 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
         
              ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
  
 
    
 
 
Attested: _________________________        
              Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 





Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE TO RATIFY LETTER OF SUPPORT TO DAWSONVILLE HISTORY 

MUSEUM FOR GRANT FUNDING 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   TO REQUEST APPROVAL TO RATIFY LETTER OF SUPPORT SUBMITTED TO THE DAWSONVILLE 
HISTORY MUSEUM IN SUPPORT OF THEIR APPLICATION TO OBTAIN GRANT FUNDING FROM THE 
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN  

 
   ORIGINAL DEADLINE FOR APPLICATION: AUGUST 31, 2021 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7b     
 

 

 





                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE TO RATIFY LETTER OF SUPPORT TO CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

FOR GRANT FUNDING 
 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   TO REQUEST TO RATIFY APPROVAL OF LETTER OF SUPPORT FOR GRANT FUNDING SUBMITTED 
TO THE DAWSON COUNTY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE TO IMPROVE BROADBAND SERVICE. 

 
   GRANT REQUEST IS BEING MADE BY ELLIJAY TELEPHONE COMPANY AND THE DEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY OF DAWSON COUNTY.   
 
   ORIGINAL DEADLINE FOR APPLICATION:  AUGUST 31, 2021. 
    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Mike Eason, Mayor______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7c     
 

 

 



. 
 
 
 
 
415 Highway 53 E. Suite 100 
Dawsonville, Georgia 30534 

 

 
 
 
 

(706) 265-3256 
Fax (706) 265-4214 

www.dawsonville-ga.gov 

 
 

  

August 18, 2021 
 
Mandy Power, President and CEO 
Dawson County Chamber of Commerce 
44 Commerce Drive 
Dawsonville, Georgia  30534 
 
Dear Ms. Power: 
 
On behalf of the City of Dawsonville, I submit this letter of support for a grant funding request being made by 
Ellijay Telephone Company in partnership with the Development Authority of Dawson County to improve 
broadband service in an underserved area of Dawsonville. 
 
Ellijay Telephone company proposes to extend last-mile fiber service in this rural portion of our community, 
roughly aligned with Amicalola Electric Membership Corporation service delivery area. Portions of the city are 
included in this service area, and some are lacking adequate broadband capability. This could improve access for 
a challenging area of Dawsonville and Dawson County with the potential to bring high-speed internet service at 
a reasonable price. The need has never been greater as many school children and business-people must now 
work from home because of the pandemic. A project of this scope would be welcomed and very much 
appreciated. 
 
We appreciate the beneficial partnership we have with the Dawson County Chamber of Commerce and the 
Development Authority of Dawson County as both are an asset to this community. 
 
This effort is greatly appreciated. Should you need additional information, please don’t hesitate to reach out to 
me at the number shown on this letterhead or via my email at bob.bolz@dawsonville-ga.gov 
 
  
 
Sincerely, 

Bob Bolz 
Bob Bolz 
City Manager 
 

mailto:bob.bolz@dawsonville-ga.gov


                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE 2022 SOLID WASTE COLLECTION CONTRACT WITH RED OAK 

SANITATION  
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

     TO REQUEST APPROVAL OF THE CONTRACT WITH RED OAK SANITATION TO PROVIDE SOLID 
WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE TO THE CITY FOR 2022 

 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• SERVICE TERMS AND CONDITIONS ARE THE SAME AS 2021 EXCEPT THE CONTRACTOR 
RATE, WHICH WAS APPROVED AT $13.40 PER CAN, PER MONTH AT THE 08/02/2021 CITY 
COUNCIL MEETING 

 

• CONTRACT APPROVED BY LEGAL     
              

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
   APPROVE, AMEND, DENY 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Beverly Banister, City Clerk__________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7d     
 

 

 



1 
 

CONTRACT FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE 

 
THIS CONTRACT FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE (this “Agreement”) made and 
entered into effective on the 1st day of January, 2022, by and between the City of Dawsonville, 
a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, by and through its City Council, hereinafter referred 
to as “City,” and Red Oak Sanitation Inc., a Georgia Corporation, acting by and through its duly 
authorized officers hereinafter referred to as “Contractor.” 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for City to promote, preserve and protect the public health of its 
citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, the removal of garbage, rubbish and other waste material generated within the City 
is a valid exercise of City’s police power, and 
 
WHEREAS, the granting of an exclusive Contract to a private corporation for the collection and 
disposal of solid waste is a valid function of City; and 
 
WHEREAS, City and Contractor desire to enter into an agreement, under the terms of which, 
Contractor shall have an exclusive Contract for a specified period of time for the collection and 
disposal of all Residential Solid Waste generated within the City, and 
 
WHEREAS, City and Contractor have agreed to the conditions, terms, rates, provisions and 
considerations under which Contractor shall perform such solid waste collection and disposal 
services as herein set out, and for the compensation as hereinafter provided; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City that the owner or occupant of every Residential Premises 
and Commercial Hand-load Customer in the incorporated area of the City shall receive solid waste 
collection and disposal services provided by Contractor, and 
 
WHEREAS, City agrees to bill and collect the fees from the Residents and Commercial Hand-
load Customers for Contractor’s solid waste collection services to the City, and the City agrees to 
pay for such services. 
  
THEREFORE, City and Contractor agree as follows: 
 
1. DEFINITIONS 

For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall be defined as follows: 
 

1.1 Brown Goods:  Those items of furniture, such as sofas, chairs, tables, carpets and other 
large items, which cannot reasonably be placed in a residential garbage can or 95-gallon 
cart. 

1.2 Cart:  A rollout receptacle for Residential Solid Waste with a capacity of not less than 95 
gallons, constructed of plastic, metal or fiberglass, having handles of adequate strength for 
lifting, and having a tight fitting lid capable of preventing entrance into the container by 
vectors. 

1.3 C & D Materials:  Waste materials generated by the construction, remodeling, repair or 
demolition of residential, commercial or other structures. 

1.4 Commercial Premises:  All non-Residential Premises, public or private, requiring solid 
waste collection within the incorporated area of the City, including commercial, industrial, 
institutional, and governmental premises. 



 -2-  
 

1.5 Commercial Hand-load Customer:  All Commercial Premises utilizing a Cart for the 
placement of their solid waste for collection by the Contractor. 

1.6 Commercial Solid Waste:  All Garbage, Rubbish and other acceptable waste generated by 
a Commercial Premises and all C & D Materials, excluding Hazardous Waste. 

1.7 City:  City of Dawsonville, Georgia. 
1.8 Curbside:  The location adjacent to the traveled portion of a publicly owned roadway 

designated by the Contractor for the placement of Carts and other solid waste for collection. 
1.9 Agreement:  This contract agreement, including exhibits and any amendments thereto, 

agreed to by the City and the Contractor during the term of the Agreement. 
1.10 Contractor:  Red Oak Sanitation, Inc. 
1.11 Garbage:  Solid waste consisting of putrescible animal and vegetable waste materials 

resulting from the handling, preparation, cooking and consumption of food, including waste 
materials from markets, storage facilities, handling and sale of produce and other farm 
products. 

1.12 Hazardous Waste:  Any solid waste identified or listed as a hazardous waste by any agency 
of the State of Georgia or the administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
pursuant to the federal Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, 72 U.S.C. 6901 et seq., as amended, including future 
amendments thereto. 

1.13 Residential Premises:  A dwelling within the incorporated area of the City occupied by a 
person or group of persons, including single family homes, duplexes, triplexes, 
quadraplexes, and mobile homes whether such mobile homes are registered as vehicles 
or assessed as real property. 

1.14 Residential Solid Waste:  All Garbage and Rubbish generated by a Residential Premises, 
excluding automobile parts, tires, C & D Materials, Yard Waste, White Goods, Hazardous 
Waste, or other unacceptable materials. 

1.15 Rubbish:  Non-putrescible solid waste consisting of paper, rags, cardboard, cartons, , , 
plastics, glass, crockery, metal cans or other such residential waste. 

1.16 White Goods:  Refrigerators, ranges, washers, water heaters, and other similar domestic 
appliances. 

1.17 Yard Debris:  Leaves, brush, grass clippings; shrubs, tree prunings, and other vegetative 
materials from the maintenance of yards, lawns and landscaping at Residential Premises. 

 
2. SCOPE OF WORK 

The work under this Contract shall consist of the work and services to be performed in the 
collection and disposal of Residential Solid Waste generated in the City, including all the 
supervision, materials, equipment, labor and all other items necessary to complete said 
work and services in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

 
3. COLLECTION 
3.1 Service Provided. 

(a) Contractor shall collect Garbage and Rubbish from each Residential Premises and 
Commercial Hand-load Customer one (1) time per week at Curbside.  Once per 
week curbside service shall consist of the one ninety-five (95) gallon cart supplied 



 -3-  
 

by the City, plus extra trash. Extra trash cannot consistently exceed 50 gallons per 
week, or an additional cart will be required for $10/month.   

(b) The Contractor shall collect up to four (4) bags or bundles of Yard Debris placed 
Curbside on the first Monday of each month from the Residential Premises.  All yard 
waste must be cut and bundled in sections no greater than three (3) feet in length.  
Bundles may be no larger than twelve (12) inches in diameter.  Bags, cans, or 
bundles cannot exceed twenty (20) pounds in weight.  Large branches & limbs 
cannot exceed 3 inches in diameter or 3 feet in length.  

(c) Contractor will not take any construction debris, rock, dirt, sod, mulch, railroad ties, 
concrete, paint, oil, logs, or trees.  Contractor does not offer a tree removal service.   

(d) The day of collection shall be Monday unless otherwise mutually agreed by 
Contractor and City.   

(e) The occupant of the Residential Premises and Commercial Hand-load Customer 
shall bag garbage and rubbish, and place only Garbage and Rubbish in the proper 
container. 

(f) The occupant of the Residential Premises and Commercial Hand-load Customer 
shall place the container(s) at Curbside by 6:00 AM on the designated collection 
day.  The occupant of the Residential Premises shall place Yard Debris in paper 
bags designed for Yard Debris at Curbside by 6:00 AM on the designated collection 
day.   

(g) Contractor shall not be responsible for collection of Garbage and Rubbish not placed 
in the proper container.   

(h) Contractor shall not be responsible for any container, or Yard Debris, not in the 
proper location at time of service, which is Curbside. 

(i) Occupants of Residential Premises and Commercial Hand-load Customer may 
request more special services at a price to be agreed upon by the occupant and 
Contractor and paid monthly by the occupant directly to contractor via ACH.  

3.2 Elderly and Disabled.  Contractor shall provide side-door pick-up to elderly or disabled 
residents as designated by the City who are physically unable to place container at 
Curbside on pick-up day.  In no case will the quantity of persons receiving backyard pick-
up exceed two percent (2%) of the total Residential Premises.  Contractor shall provide 
side-door Residential Solid Waste collection service at no additional charge for those 
residents not physically able to take Carts to Curbside, provided however, that such 
exemptions will be granted only if there is no other occupant of the Residential Premises 
physically capable of placing the Cart at Curbside and the resident provides an affidavit 
from a physician certifying the physical disability.  In no event will side-door or backdoor 
service be provided at a distance of more than 150 feet from the public roadway.  In the 
event where side-door or backdoor service is provided pursuant to this Section, the 
occupant shall use the Cart for storage of Residential Solid Waste but must place the 
Residential Solid Waste in bags, designed to accommodate storage of waste, each bag 
not to exceed 30 pounds in weight. 

3.3 Location of Containers for Collection.  The Container and bagged Yard Debris shall be 
placed at Curbside for collection.  Curbside refers to that portion of right-of-way adjacent 
to paved or traveled City roadways.  Containers shall be placed as close to the roadway 
as practicable without interfering with or endangering the movement of vehicles or 
pedestrians.  When construction work is being performed in the right-of-way, containers, 



 -4-  
 

bags and bundles shall be placed as close as practicable to an access point for the 
collection vehicle.  Contractor may decline to collect any container not so placed or any 
residential or commercial refuse not in a bag. 

 
4. ROUTES AND HOURS OF COLLECTION OPERATION 
4.1 Hours of Operation.  Collection of Residential Solid Waste shall not start before 6:00 AM 

nor continue after 7:00 PM on the same day. 
4.2 Routes of Collection.  Collection routes shall be established by the Contractor.  Contractor 

shall submit a map designating the collection routes to the City for its approval, which 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  The Contractor may from time-to-time 
propose to City for approval changes in routes or day of collection, which approval shall 
not be unreasonably withheld.  Upon City approval of the proposed changes, Contractor 
shall promptly give written or published notice to the affected Residential Units. 

4.3 Holidays.  The following shall be holidays for the purpose of this Contract: 
New Years’ Day 
Memorial Day 

July 4th 
Labor Day 

Thanksgiving Day 
Christmas Day 

Contractor may decide to observe any or all of the above mentioned Holidays by 
suspension of collection service on the holiday, but such decision does not relieve the 
Contractor of his obligation to provide collection service at least once per week (Monday - 
Friday) within the Holiday Week.  The Contractor will not be allowed Sunday collection 
during a Holiday Week. 

4.4 Complaints.  All complaints shall be made directly to the Contractor and shall be given 
prompt and courteous attention.  In the case of alleged missed scheduled collections, the 
Contractor shall investigate and, if such allegations are verified, shall arrange for the 
collection of the refuse not collected within 24 hours after the complaint is received. 

4.5 Containers.   The Contractor agrees to be back charged for trash containers that require 
replacement due to the negligence and/or abuse of Contractor’s personnel during refuse 
collection.   

4.6 Collection Equipment and Personnel.  The Contractor shall provide an adequate number 
of vehicles for regular collection services.  All vehicles and other equipment shall be kept 
in good repair, appearance, and in a sanitary condition at all times.  Each vehicle shall 
have clearly visible on each side the identity and telephone number of the Contractor.  All 
Residential Solid Waste hauled by the Contractor shall be so contained, tied, covered, or 
enclosed such that leaking, spilling, or blowing are prevented. 

4.7 Office.  The Contractor shall maintain an office or such other facilities through which it can 
be contacted.  It shall be equipped with sufficient local service telephones and shall have 
a responsible person in charge from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. daily on regular collection days. 

4.8 Access.  The Contractor shall be required to provide collection services to all Residential 
Premises located on roadways accessible to standard waste collection vehicles.  The City 
shall maintain all publicly-owned roads and bridges in a condition that affords access by 
Contractor’s standard waste collection vehicles.  The City shall require occupants of 
Residential Premises to place Carts and bagged Yard Debris at curbside for collection.  
The City shall require occupants of Residential Premises not accessible to standard waste 
collection vehicles to place Carts and bagged Yard Debris at an accessible location on a 
roadway agreed upon by the occupant and the Contractor.  If the City or Contractor 
determines that, for whatever reason, the occupants of Residential Premise cannot place 



 -5-  
 

the Cart and bagged Yard Debris at curbside adjacent to a publicly owned roadway, then 
the Contractor will provide the collection service at a location agreed upon by Contractor 
and the occupant, except as provided in Section 3.2 of this Contract. 
 

5. DISPOSAL 
5.1 Disposal.  All Garbage, Rubbish and Yard Debris collected for disposal by the Contractor 

shall be disposed of in a fully permitted, Sub-title D Municipal Solid Waste Landfill with 
tipping fees paid by the Contractor.  Should tipping fees at the landfill rise during the 
contract period, an adjustment to the monthly fee shall be made based on 195 pounds per 
residential unit per month.  An example calculation is shown: 
45 lbs. per house/week X 52 weeks/year / 2000 lbs. X New Tip Fee /12 
45 lbs. per house/week X 52 weeks/year / 2000 lbs. X Existing Tip Fee / 12 months 
The difference between the two figures is the monthly increase per Residential Unit.   
Proof of the increase of landfill fees must be provided by the Contractor to the City prior to 
any disposal increase and only the difference in the amount old and new landfill rates can 
be increased. 

 
6. COMPENSATION 
6.1 Rates of Compensation for One (1) Year Rate Period.  Contractor shall be paid by the City 

for solid waste collection, Yard Debris removal, and disposal services provided hereunder 
at the rate of $13.40 per month per address (Residential or Commercial Hand-load)  There 
shall be no charge for services provided to City Hall. 

6.2 Renewal; Rates of Compensation for Subsequent One (1) Year Rate Periods.  Upon the 
mutual agreement of the City and Contractor, the parties may renew this Agreement for 
additional terms.  Prior to the end of the initial one (1) year term of this Agreement, and at 
each one (1) year interval thereafter, the City and the Contractor may enter into 
negotiations to establish, and agree upon, rates of compensation to be paid to Contractor 
during the next ensuing one (1) year term.  The rates shall be based on Contracts’ capital, 
operating, disposal, and management costs projected to be incurred during the next one 
(1) year term, and a fair and reasonable profit margin thereon.  In the event that the City 
and Contractor are unable to agree on rates to be paid to Contractor during the next one 
(1) year term by not later than 90 days prior to the end of the then current year term, this 
Agreement shall terminate pursuant to Section 11 hereof. 

6.3 Rate Adjustments Due to Significant Changes.  The rates set forth in Section 6.1 shall be 
fixed for the initial one (1) year term of this Agreement, and shall only be adjusted to 
compensate Contractor for: 
(a) Any change in Governmental laws, ordinances, regulations, assessments, fees or 

taxes that require Contractor to incur additional costs in the performance of services 
pursuant to this Agreement (Changes in Law), including changes in disposal fees 
due to such Changes in Law. 

(b) Due to the volatility of the oil market.  Contractor reserves the right to initiate a 
monthly fuel/environmental fee to offset oil market changes if diesel reaches or exceeds $3.50 
per gallon.  The formula for calculating such fee is $.10 per customer per month for every $.25 
over $3.50 per gallon.  The fee is only calculated and applied in $.25 increments and billed in 
arrears.  This charge helps contractor keep up with the changing costs of fuel and provides the 



 -6-  
 

stability needed to continue to maintain the high level of service our clients expect and deserve. 
Fuel/environmental charges are common in the transportation industry and are charged in the 
waste industry, trucking and shipping industries, and the national airline carriers.  This 
fuel/environmental charge is not a tax or surcharge imposed by or remitted to any governmental 
or regulatory agency; it is the contractors charge. 

(1) For example: If fuel raises to $3.74 per gallon, there is no fee.  However, if fuel 
raises between $3.75 per gallon and $3.99 per gallon, the monthly fee will be $60.00 
based upon 600 customers. 

(2) As monthly services are billed in advance, fuel fee is calculated at the end of the 
month and applied to the next month’s invoice. 

 

In the event that any of the above events occur, Contractor shall determine the amount of 
rate adjustment required to compensate Contractor for the additional, fully justifiable costs 
and shall petition the City for approval of the rate adjustment, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld.  Contractor agrees to continue solid waste collection and disposal 
services during any dispute, with the City, if any, until any dispute is resolved, and the City 
and Contractor agree to adjusted rates of compensation. 

6.4 City to Act as Collector.  The City under the base bid shall submit statements and collect 
from all Residential Units and Commercial Hand-load Premises for services provided by 
the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement, except for those extra services outlined in 
Section 3.1 (i).  

6.5 Delinquent and Closed Accounts.  Upon written notice sent  by the City, the Contractor 
shall discontinue refuse collection service at any Residential or Commercial Premises.  
Upon further written notification by the City, the Contractor shall resume refuse collection 
on the next regularly scheduled collection day.   

6.6 Contractor Billings to City.  The Contractor shall bill the City on, or before, the first of each 
month which collection service will be provided, and the City shall issue payment within 
fifteen (15) days of receipt of said bill..  Such billing and payment shall be based on the 
total number of Residential and Commercial Hand-load Premises in the incorporated areas 
of the City and the price rates set forth in Section 6.1.  The Contractor shall be entitled to 
payment for services rendered irrespective of whether or not the City collects from the 
customer for such service.   

The same service and rates shall be extended to any areas which may be annexed by the City 
during the term of the contract, or any new developments within the incorporated limits of the City.  
City will inform contractor of each and every new home that is added to the route no less than 
thirty (30) days prior to the first service day.  

 
7. NON-DISCRIMINATION 

In the performance of the work and services to be performed under the terms hereof, the 
Contractor covenants and agrees not to discriminate against any person because of race, 
sex, creed, color, religion or national origin. 
 

8. INDEMNITY 
The Contractor will indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the City, its officers, agents, 
servants and employees from and against any and all suits, actions, legal proceedings, 
claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses, and reasonable attorney’s fees incidental to 



 -7-  
 

any work done in the performance of this Contract arising out of a willful or negligent act or 
omission of the Contractor its officers, agents, servants and employees. 
 

9. FORCE MAJEURE 
Except for the obligation to pay for services rendered, neither party hereto shall be liable 
for failure to perform hereunder due to contingencies beyond its control, including, but not 
limited to  riots, war, fire, acts of God (including without limitation flood, hurricane, tornado 
or storm), compliance with any law, regulation or order, whether valid or invalid, of the 
United States of America or any other governmental body or instrumentality thereof, 
whether now existing or hereafter created (collectively referred to as “Force Majeure 
Event”).  In addition, the performance required under this Contract does not include the 
collection or disposal of any increased volume of solid wastes resulting from a Force 
Majeure Event.  In the event of such Force Majeure Event, the Contractor will vary routes 
and schedule as may be deemed necessary.  In addition, the City and Contractor shall 
negotiate the amounts to be paid Contractor for services to be performed as a result of 
increased volumes resulting from a Force Majeure Event or any other event over which 
Contractor has no control. 

 
10. LICENSES AND TAXES 

The Contractor shall obtain all licenses and permits and promptly pay all taxes required by 
the City and State. 
 

11. TERM 
The term of this Agreement shall begin on 1st day of January, 2022 and continue for a 
period of one (1) year.  Pursuant to Section 6.2 hereof, the Contractor or the City shall have 
the right to terminate this Agreement at the end of the one (1) year term or at the end of 
any renewal one (1) year term. 
 

12. REPORTS 
Contractor shall provide various reports to the City as may be required from time to time 
by the City. 

 
13. INSURANCE 

The Contractor shall at all times during the Agreement maintain in full force and effect 
Employer’s Liability, Workmen’s Compensation, Public Liability, and Property Damage 
Insurance, including contractual liability coverage with a combined limit of no less than 
$1,000,000.  All insurance shall be by insurers and for policy limits acceptable to the City 
and before commencement of work hereunder the Contractor agrees to furnish the City 
certificates of insurance or other evidence satisfactory to the City to effect that such 
insurance has been procured and is in force.  The certificates shall contain the following 
express obligation: 

 

“This is to certify that the policies of insurance described herein have been issued to the 
insured for whom this certificate is executed and are in force at this time.  In the event of 
cancellation or material change in a policy affecting the certificate holder, thirty (30) days 
prior written notice will be given the certificate holder.” 

 
14. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 

The Contractor shall conduct operations under this Contract in compliance with all 
applicable laws, including without limitation, ordinances, laws and statutes of the City, state 



 -8-  
 

and federal governments.  In the event that the collection or disposal of any solid waste 
hereunder shall become restricted or prohibited by any applicable law, ordinance, rule or 
regulation, such type of waste shall be eliminated from the requirements and provisions of 
this Contract.   

 
15. ASSIGNMENT 

Contractor’s rights accruing under this Contract may be assigned in whole or in part by the 
Contractor without the prior written approval or consent of the City.  As a condition of such 
assignment, the assignee shall agree to assume the obligations of Contractor hereunder. 

 
16. EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT 

The Contractor shall have the sole and exclusive contract to provide solid waste collection 
and disposal service in the incorporated area of the City of Dawsonville.  The City hereby 
grants and the Contractor hereby accepts the sole and exclusive contract, license and 
privilege to provide collection and disposal service to all Residential and Commercial Hand-
load Premises in the incorporated area of the City of Dawsonville for the initial one (1) year 
term of this Agreement and all renewal terms thereto.  The City further agrees that so long 
as Contractor is not in default hereunder, it will not enter into any agreement with any other 
entity for performance of solid waste collection and disposal services during the term hereof 
or any renewal terms. 

 
17. OWNERSHIP 

Title to the Residential Solid Waste and Yard Debris to be collected under this Contractor 
shall pass to the Contractor once it is placed in the vehicle under control of the Contractor. 

 
18. TERMINATION AND ATTORNEY FEES 
18.1 In the event of an alleged material breach of this Contract, the City shall provide written 

notice of such breach to the Contractor.  If within 20 days from receipt of such notice, the 
Contractor has either failed to correct the condition or reach an agreement with the City on 
a mutually satisfactory solution, then the City may, within 10 days, require the Contractor 
to appear before the City Council, at either a regular or specially called meeting, to show 
cause why the Contract should not be terminated.  After such meeting the Council may 
elect to: 
(i) provide written notice to the Contractor that the Contract will be terminated; 
(ii) extend the time to allow Contractor to cure the breach; or 
(iii) impose sanctions or other remedies without terminating the Contract. 

18.2 Costs.  In the event that either party is required to take any legal action to enforce the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement because of the breach of or failure to perform any term 
or condition by the other party, the breaching party agrees to pay all reasonable costs 
expended by the other party, including reasonable attorney fees. 

 
19. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
19.1 Choice of Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed for 

all purposes by the laws of the State of Georgia, excluding the laws applicable to conflicts 
or choice of law. 

19.2 E-verify.  Contactor shall execute the E-Verify affidavit attached hereto as Exhibit A. 



 -9-  
 

19.3 Entire Agreement.  This instrument and the attached exhibit contain the entire agreement 
between the parties relating to the rights herein granted and the obligations herein 
assumed.  Any oral representation or modifications concerning this instrument shall be of 
no force or effect and this Agreement may not be amended except by a subsequent 
modification in writing, signed by the parties hereto or by an ordinance adopted by City 
modifying the rates to be charged hereunder in accordance with the provisions of Section 
6 hereof. 

19.4 Severability.  If any part of this Agreement for any reason is declared invalid, such decision 
shall not affect the validity of any remaining portion, which remaining portion shall remain 
in force and effect as if this Contract had been executed with the invalid portion thereof 
eliminated.  It is hereby declared the intention of the parties that they would have executed 
the remaining portion of this Agreement without including any such part, parts or portions 
which may, for any reason, be hereinafter declared invalid. 

19.5 Captions.  The titles or headings preceding any section or paragraph are for reference and 
convenience only and shall be in no way construed to be a material part of this Agreement. 

19.6 City’s Authority.  The parties signing this Contract on behalf of the City have been 
authorized to do so by specific action of the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Dawsonville adopted in open meeting and of record in its official minutes. 

19.7 .Notices. All notices under the terms of this Agreement shall be hand delivered, 
delivered by Certified Mail or delivered by nationally recognized overnight delivery service 
to the address set forth hereinbelow or at such other future address as may be provided 
by one to the other.  
 
EXECUTED this _____day of ______________________________, 2021. 
 
City of Dawsonville, GA   Red Oak Sanitation  
415 Hwy 53 E, Suite 100   2 Ruby Street 
Dawsonville, GA 30534                           Gainesville, GA 30503 
 
    
______________________________  _____________________________  
By:  Mike Eason, Mayor              By: Marlon Luce, President        
 
 
 
_______________________________   _________________________________ 
Witness     Witness 



 -10-  
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Affidavit Pursuant to Georgia Immigration Laws 

Note: As a prerequisite to certain interactions with government entities, Georgia Law requires an affidavit regarding the subjects 
indicated herein. 

 
1.  I am over the age of 18, of sound mind, and am competent to make this Affidavit. 
 
2.  Initial all that apply (you may initial more than one): 
 

                I execute this Affidavit as an applicant for a Public Benefit.  Public Benefits include Retirement 
Benefits, Health Benefits, Disability Benefits, Business Loans, Business Licenses, Professional Licenses, 
Certificates authorizing the transaction of regulated businesses, other benefits as referenced and defined in 
O.C.G.A. Section 50-36-1, and as defined by the Attorney General of the State of Georgia.  
 
________  I execute this Affidavit as a contractor or  subcontractor on a project of the City of Dawsonville, 
Georgia. 
 

3.  I submit this affidavit on behalf of _______________________________ (self or business entity). 
 
4.  With respect to my personal presence in the United States, I state as follows:  
 
 a.  __________ I am a United States citizen.  OR 
 

 b. __________ I am a legal permanent resident 18 years of age or older or I am an 
otherwise qualified alien or non-immigrant under the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act 
lawfully present in the United States.  I have provided my Alien Registration Number or, in the 
event I do not have an Alien Registration Number, I have provided another identifying number 
below.* 

 
5.  (For Contractors, and Subcontractors Only)  With respect to efforts to verify the lawful presence of persons 
employed or engaged by me or the entity on behalf of which I sign this Affidavit, I affirm (a) that I or the entity on 
behalf of which I submit this affidavit has registered with, is authorized to use, and uses the system known as "E-
Verify" to determine immigration status of all employees, contractors or subcontractors, as the case may be; (b) that 
the pertinent E-Verify user number and date of authorization are ___________ and  _____________; (c) that E-
Verify will be used to verify the immigration status of all employees and contractors/subcontractors in the future, 
indefinitely; (d) that I will only enter into subcontracts with individuals or entities who also use E-Verify; and (f) that I 
will notify the City of Dawsonville, Georgia immediately if there should be any change in the above stated E-Verify 
usage. 
 
6.  In making the above representations under oath, I understand that the City of Dawsonville, Georgia and its 
employees are relying upon this affidavit, and I hereby authorize them to do so.  I am aware that any person who 
knowingly and willfully makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation in an affidavit shall be 
guilty of a violation of Code Section 16-10-20 of the Official Code of Georgia. 
     
       Signature of Applicant:      
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN       
BEFORE ME ON THIS THE 
       _________________________________                          
______ DAY OF _____________, 20___.   

Print:___________________________________                 
 
 

*_____________________________________ 
__________________________________   Alien Reg. No. or Other Identifying No. for Non-Citizens 
Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
__________________________________ 
*Note: O.C.G.A. § 50-36- l(f)(1)(B)(ii) requires that aliens under the federal Immigration and Nationality Act, as amended, provide 
their alien registration number. Because legal permanent residents are included in the federal definition of "alien", legal permanent 
residents must also provide their alien registration number. Qualified aliens that do not have an alien registration number may supply 
another identifying number. 
 

OFFICE USE ONLY:     Type of Secure and Verifiable Document: _______________________________ 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE ANNUAL CITY HALL CLOSURE FOR MOUNTAIN MOONSHINE 

FESTIVAL 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE(S):  09/20/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:    
 
TO REQUEST ANNUAL CLOSING OF CITY HALL ON THE FRIDAY OF THE FESTIVAL FOR THE 
USE OF CITY HALL PROPERTY TO ACCOMMODATE THE ANNUAL MOUNTAIN MOONSHINE 
FESTIVAL 
 
EVENT IS ANNUALLY HELD THE FOURTH WEEKEND IN OCTOBER 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• EMPLOYEES WHO WORK IN CITY HALL CAN OPT TO RECEIVE PTO, TAKE THE DAY 
OFF WITHOUT PAY OR COME INTO CITY HALL TO WORK 
 

• THREE-DAY VENDORS AND CAR SHOW START ON FRIDAY AT CITY HALL/MAIN 
STREET PARK; NO PARKING AVAILABLE FOR RESIDENTS OR STAFF 
 

• CITY HALL CLOSED LAST FIVE YEARS FOR THIS EVENT  
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
     TO APPROVE, AMEND OR DENY      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
      
 
 

 
    REQUESTED BY:   Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     7e     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   SAFETY GRANT FUNDS PRESENTATION   

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

    TO HAVE THE SAFETY GRANT FUNDS PRESENTED BY GMA  
 

  * BRENDA ECKMAN, CLAIMS MANAGER & SERVICES COORDINATOR 
 
    GRANT FUNDS WERE PREVIOUSLY APPROVED AT THE 07/19/2021 MEETING 
 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
     
          

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 
 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   8     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                                  EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION_____________  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO RECOGNIZE AND PRESENT THE FOLLOWING:  
• JULY 2021 EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH  
• AUGUST 2021 EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH 
• JACOB BARR – SERVICE AWARD FOR TEN YEARS OF SERVICE 
• STEVEN MCNEAL – SERVICE AWARD FOR THREE YEARS OF SERVICE 
• STAN ZAVERHUKA – SERVICE AWARD FOR THREE YEARS OF SERVICE 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
   
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:                 Bob Bolz, City Manager________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    9     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   AWARD ANNOUNCEMENT – CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR 

EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL REPORTING FY 2020 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

   TO PRESENT THE CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT FOR EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL REPORTING   
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020 AND THE AWARD OF FINANCIAL REPORTING ACHIEVEMENT TO THE 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT FOR FY 2020 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   10     
 

 

 



8/30/2021

Mike Eason
Mayor
City of Dawsonville, Georgia

Dear Mayor Eason:

We are pleased to notify you that your comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2020 qualifies for GFOA's Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. 
The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in governmental accounting and 
financial reporting, and its attainment represents a significant accomplishment by a government and its 
management.

When a Certificate of Achievement is awarded to a government, an Award of Financial Reporting 
Achievement (AFRA) is also presented to the individual(s) or department designated by the government 
as primarily responsible for its having earned the Certificate. This award has been sent to the submitter as 
designated on the application.

We hope that you will arrange for a formal presentation of the Certificate and Award of Financial 
Reporting Achievement, and give appropriate publicity to this notable achievement. A sample news 
release is included to assist with this effort.

We hope that your example will encourage other government officials in their efforts to achieve and 
maintain an appropriate standard of excellence in financial reporting.

Sincerely,

Michele Mark Levine
Director, Technical Services





The Government Finance Officers Association of 
the United States and Canada

presents this

AWARD OF FINANCIAL REPORTING ACHIEVEMENT
to

The Award of Financial Reporting Achievement is presented by the Government Finance Officers 
Association to the department or individual designated as instrumental in the government unit achieving 
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. A Certificate of Achievement is 
presented to those government units whose annual financial reports are judged to adhere to program 
standards and represents the highest award in government financial reporting.

Executive Director

Date: 8/30/2021

Finance Department
City of Dawsonville, Georgia



                                           
 

 

     
     SUBJECT:    54TH ANNUAL MOUNTAIN MOONSHINE FESTIVAL PLAN REVIEW 
       
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: _____________09/21/2021_________________________    
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:   

      TO REVIEW REQUESTED DOCUMENTATION FOR MOUNTAIN MOONSHINE FESTIVAL 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

      FOLLOWING INFORMATION REQUESTED: 
 

1. WRITTEN APPROVAL FROM FOOD LION OF FESTIVAL MAP LAYOUT ADDRESSING THE AREAS 
OF THEIR PROPERTY THAT ARE TO BE USED AS WELL AS A PLAN FOR HOW TO GET THEIR 
FOOD DELIVERIES IN AND OUT DURING THE FESTIVAL, I.E., ESCORT, ROUTE, ETC. THIS IS OF 
SPECIAL CONCERN WITH YOUR PLANNED LOCATION OF THE STAGE ON CITY PROPERTY 
ALONG MAIN STREET JUST BEHIND THE DOLLAR TREE TRASH RECEPTACLE. 

2. WRITTEN APPROVAL FROM THE PROPERTY OWNER OF THE SHOPPING CENTER. 
3. WRITTEN APPROVAL FROM THE OWNER OF THE PROPERTY ADJACENT TO BOJANGLES. 
4. AN UPDATED MAP THAT ALL PARTIES AGREE UPON AND THAT SHOW ANY CHANGES FROM 

THE MAP YOU PROVIDED 
5. COVID PLANS 
6. FIRE ISSUES 

• ALL ACCESS ROADS WILL REMAIN CLEAR OF OBSTRUCTION AND SHALL HAVE A MIN. 
WIDTH OF 14’ 

• NO VEHICLES SHALL BE PLACED IN THE ROADS, THAT PREVENT THE ACCESS TO 
EMERGENCY VEHICLES. 

 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
  
 
 
 

 
 

 
REQUESTED BY:  Mike Eason, Mayor 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #  11   
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   BUDGET AMENDMENT – PREPARATION OF AN ESTIMATED BUDGET 

DOCUMENT FOR ELLIOTT FIELD AIRPORT 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO REQUEST A BUDGET AMENDMENT FROM GENERAL FUND RESERVES TO PREPARE AN 
ESTIMATED BUDGET DOCUMENT FOR ELLIOTT FIELD AIRPORT 

     
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   12     
 

 

 



1 
 

TASK ORDER NO. 2 
ESTIMATED BUDGET DOCUMENT 

ELLIOTT FIELD AIRPORT 
DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 

 
This Task Order is written pursuant to the basic agreement entitled General Services 
Agreement, executed on April 18th, 2017. The referenced basic agreement pertains to 
proposed improvements to the Elliott Field Airport. This Task Order entered into and 
executed on the date indicated below the signature block, by and between the City of 
Dawsonville (Owner) and Lead Edge Design Group, Inc. (Engineer), sets forth the project 
description, project schedule, and engineering fees related to the preparation of an  
Estimated Budget Document for the Elliott Field Airport. 
 
SECTION I - PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The project is to consist of:  
 

A. Preparation of an Estimated Budget Document. 
 

SECTION II - PROJECT SCHEDULE 
 
From the time the Owner approves this Task Order, the Engineer shall begin services for the 
project. 
 
SECTION III - SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Engineer will provide those services listed in the basic agreement which are applicable to 
this specific Task Order. Specifically, this project will include: 
 

A. Prepare an Estimated Budget Document outlining estimated airport operations for 
the Elliott Field Airport as a public use airport. 

B. Conduct one meeting with the Owner to review results of the document. 
 
Services not included in this Task Order: 

 
A. Predesign geotechnical investigation 
B. Topographic survey for design 
C. 3-year Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Plan or Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 

Plan for a specific project 
D. Engineers design report 
E. ALP Update 
F. Design phase services 
G. Bid phase services 
H. Construction phase services 
I. Geotechnical quality assurance testing during construction 
J. On-site project observation 



2 
 

K. Record drawings 
L. Utility location, removal, or relocation 
M. Preparation of design drawings, specifications, and contract documents  
N. As built surveys 
O. Assistance with obtaining permits  
P. Agency permit fees 
Q. Environmental Services 
R. Removal or mitigation of hazardous materials 
S. Printing & shipping 

 
SECTION IV - FEES AND PAYMENTS 
 
The following fees are to be paid to the Engineer as compensation for these services: 
 

A. Estimated Budget Document:     $ 2,200.00 
 

SECTION V - BASIC AGREEMENT IN EFFECT: 
 
Except as amended specifically herein, the basic General Services Agreement shall remain in 
full force as originally approved and executed. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Task Order to be duly executed 
as of the date and year first written herein. 
 
CITY OF DAWSONVILLE    LEAD EDGE DESIGN GROUP, INC. 
 
Signature: __________________________ Signature: _________________________ 
 
Name (Print): _______________________ Name (Print): ______________________ 
 
Title: ______________________________ Title: _____________________________ 
 
Date: ______________________________ Date: ____________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPALACHIAN REGIONAL COMMISSION (ARC) GRANT FOR DOWNTOWN 

STRATEGIC PLAN 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

 
   TO REQUEST APPROVAL TO SEEK A GRANT FROM ARC FOR A DOWNTOWN STRATEGIC PLAN 
     
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
  GMRC WILL APPLY/ADMINISTER THE GRANT AT NO CHARGE FOR THE CITY 
 

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   13     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:                         2022 MEETING CALENDAR REVIEW                  _ 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
  

• TO REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE DRAFT OF THE 2022 CITY MEETINGS CALENDAR 
 

• FINAL DRAFT TO BE PRESENTED AT THE OCTOBER 4, 2021 MEETING 
 

• DRAFT CALENDAR ALSO PRESENTED TO PLANNING COMMISSION, HISTORIC 
PRESERVATION COMMISSION AND DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FOR 
CONSIDERATION AND INPUT 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
      
     
 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
   
     
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
        
 
 

 
          REQUESTED BY:   Beverly Banister, City Clerk_______________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   14   
 

 

 



                                    
 

 
 
Meeting times (same as 2021): 
 
City Council     5:00 pm 
Planning Commission   5:30 pm 
Historic Preservation Commission 5:30 pm 
Downtown Development Authority 5:30 pm 
 
 
 
 
City Council meetings for January have been moved to Thursdays due to City Hall being 
closed on the first and third Mondays in observance of New Year’s Day (January 3rd) and 
MLK Day (January 17th)  
 
 
The following months only have one City Council meeting scheduled to accommodate 
for holidays (same as 2021): 
    
April – Spring Break 
July – Independence Day 
September – Labor Day 
 
A Special Called meeting can be held for any business items needing to be considered 
during these months that cannot wait for the next regularly scheduled meeting.   
 
 
HPC will hold their December meeting on Tuesday, December 13, 2022 
 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
415 Hwy 53 E • Suite 100 
Dawsonville, GA 30534 

beverly.banister@dawsonville-ga.gov 
(706) 265-3256 

mailto:beverly.banister@dawsonville-ga.gov


January 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

      1 
       

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
 City Hall Closed 

New Year’s Day 
Observed 

  City Council Regular 
Meeting 
  

  

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
 City Hall Closed 

MLK Day 
 

  City Council Regular 
Meeting & Work 
Session 

  

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
 DDA      

30 31      
       

 

DRAFT



February 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

  1 2 3 4 5 
       

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
 Planning 

Commission 
 

     

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 
 

     

27 28      
 Historic Preservation 

Commission 
     

       
       

 

DRAFT



March 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

  1 2 3 4 5 
       

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

27 28 29 30 31   
 DDA      

       
       

 

DRAFT



April 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

     1 2 
       

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
 SPRING BREAK SPRING BREAK SPRING BREAK SPRING BREAK SPRING BREAK 

 
 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
 Planning 

Commission 
   City Hall Closed 

Good Friday 
 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
Easter Sunday City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
 Historic Preservation 

Commission 
     

       
       

 

DRAFT



May 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
 DDA      

29 30 31     
 City Hall Closed 

Memorial Day 
     

       
       

 

DRAFT



June 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

   1 2 3 4 
       

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

26 27 28 29 30   
 Historic Preservation 

Commission 
     

       
       

 

DRAFT



July 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

     1 2 
       

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
 City Hall Closed 

Independence Day 
     

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
 DDA      

31       
       

 

DRAFT



August 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 
       

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

28 29 30 31    
 Historic Preservation 

Commission 
 

     

       
       

 

DRAFT



September 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

    1 2 3 
       

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
 City Hall Closed 

Labor Day 
     

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

25 26 27 28 29 30  
 DDA      

       
       

 

DRAFT



October 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

      1 
       

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

     

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
 Historic Preservation 

Commission 
     

30 31      
       

 

DRAFT



November 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

  1 2 3 4 5 
       

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
   City Hall Closed 

Veteran’s Day 
 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
 Planning 

Commission 
     

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 

  City Hall Closed 
Thanksgiving 

City Hall Closed 
Thanksgiving 
 

 

27 28 29 30    
 DDA      

       
       

 

DRAFT



December 2022 
  

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

    1 2 3 
       

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting 
     

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
 Planning 

Commission 
Historic Preservation 
Commission 

    

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
 City Council Regular 

Meeting & Work 
Session 
 

   City Hall Closed 
Christmas Eve 
Observed 

 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 
 City Hall Closed 

Christmas Day 
Observed 

   City Hall Closed 
New Year’s Eve 
Observed 
 

 

       
       

 
 
 
 
 

 DRAFT



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:   NAMING PRIVATE ROADS IN CITY HALL COMPLEX 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021    
 

  
 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  
 
TO DISCUSS NAMES FOR TWO STREETS IN THE VICINITY OF THE CITY HALL COMPLEX 
 
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
1 – PARK STREET: ROAD BEHIND THE CITY HALL COMPLEX CONNECTING ALLEN STREET TO MAIN 
STREET PARK/CITY HALL COMPLEX AND THE SHOPPING CENTER. THIS IS A CITY STREET. 
 
2 – CITY HALL STREET: ROAD THAT CONNECTS MAIN STREET TO THE CITY HALL COMPLEX 
RUNNING BETWEEN THE FOOD LION SHOPPING CENTER AND BOJANGLES. THIS IS A PRIVATE 
ROAD. 
 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: ___Bob Bolz, City Manager__________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #____15_______ 
 

 

 





                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:   COVID-19 VACCINATION INCENTIVES FOR EMPLOYEES  
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021    
   

 
 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #_______________________________________ 

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  
 
TO REQUEST APPROVAL TO FUND COVID-19 VACCINE INCENTIVES FOR CITY EMPLOYEES AT 
$250.00 PER EMPLOYEE VACCINATED.  
 
EMPLOYEE WOULD HAVE TO SHOW PROOF OF VACCINE BEFORE RECEIVING INCENTIVE FUNDS. 
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES 
 
CDC, DPH, GMA, MANY OTHERS RECOMMEND TAKING MEASURES TO ENCOURAGE VACCINATION 
AGAINST THE COVID VIRUS. EMPLOYEES ARE CURRENTLY ALLOWED TO GET SHOTS ON WORK 
TIME. THIS WOULD ENCOURAGE EMPLOYEES TO GET VACCINATED FOR COVID. 
 
FUNDS NOT TO EXCEED $5,250.00 (21 EMPLOYEES X $250.00) WITH $100.00 ($2,100.00) PER 
EMPLOYEE TO BE REIMBURSED FROM ARPA FUNDS AND THE REMAINING $150.00 PER EMPLOYEE 
NOT TO EXCEED $3,150.00 TO BE COVERED OUT OF OVERTIME SURPLUS OR RESERVES. 
 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
      

 
     REQUESTED BY: __Bob Bolz, City Manager________________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #____16_______ 
 

 

 



DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR 

AGENDA ITEM# 17 

SUBJECT: Maple Hill Drive Detention Pond 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DA TE: __ S __ e...._p __ te __ m __ b __ e __ r_2_0.._, 2_ 0--2_1 ________________ _ 

BUDGET INFORMATION: GL ACCOUNT# 100-4200-22200 
--------------------

Funds Available from: __ Annual Budget: __ Capital Budget: Other __ _ 

_ X_Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: __ Enterprise Fund: ___ General Fund 

PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
Gary & Katelyn Gravitt and James & Julie Morgan has petitioned the city to perform permanent 
maintenance of the detention pond at 80 and 91 Maple Hill Drive. 

HISTORY/ FACTS/ ISSUES: 
• Detention pond was constructed in 2003.
• Morgan's purchased property in 2003.
• Gravitt's purchased property in 2017.
• Subdivision does not have a dedicated HOA.
• Detention pond serves all 13 lots.
• Planning Department searched council minutes and found no official dedication to the city.
• Storm water Ordinance Chapter 107-195 allows the city to do maintenance work and issue a lien

on property.

OPTIONS: Approve, Deny or Postpone 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 

DEPARTMENT: Planning and Zoning 

REQUESTED BY : David Picklesimer 

























                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   UPDATED FEE SCHEDULE REVIEW  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT # N/A       

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

TO PRESENT FOR REVIEW THE PROPOSED NEW RATE(S) FOR SERVICE FEES FOR UTILITY DEPT 
AND PLANNING AND ZONING DEPT.  
 
TO REQUEST LEGAL TO DEVELOP AN ORDINANCE AMENDMENT TO IMPLEMENT PROPOSED FEE 
UPDATES – PROPOSED RATES CHANGES TO GO INTO EFFECT 01/01/2022 

 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• UTILITY RATES WERE INCREASED IN 2016 WITH PROPOSED ADDITIONAL INCREASE THE 
FOLLOWING YEAR WHICH DID NOT OCCUR 

• UTILITY RATES WERE INCREASED IN 2021 BY $1 FOR UTILITY DEPT. 
 
     

ATTACHMENTS PROVIDED:  5%, 7% OR 10% INCREASE AND ASKING FOR A 3.5% INCREASE PER 
YEAR THEREAFTER.   
 

DETAILED LIST FOR PLANNING AND ZONING ALSO ATTACHED         

 

     OPTIONS: 
 

   APPROVE, AMEND, DENY 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION:  
 

STAFF RECOMMENDS P&Z RATE INCREASES AND 10% INCREASE FOR UTILITY SERVICE RATES. 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Robin Gazaway and David Picklesimer__________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    18     
 

 

 

















 
 

 
    Created: 2021-07-27 16:48:11 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 27) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 2-110. Fee schedule. 

The fees or charges provided for or required by the below listed sections shall be as shown below:  

 

b. Garbage fees:  

Garbage service regulatory fees within city limits:  
 14-134(a)(1). For licenses obtained prior to July 1 in any given calendar year, per customer  $ 6.00  
 14-134(a)(2). For licenses obtained after July 1 in any given calendar year, per customer  3.00  
License renewals and garbage deposits:  
 14-134(b). Renewal fee  6.00  
 14-142. Garbage security deposit  25.00    $60.00 

 



 (8)  Buildings and building regulations (chapter 102; appendix A-36):  

a. Residential/mobile home building permits.                    Current       Proposed 

Residential building permit Plat review fee  $50.00   

Residential building permit inspection fee  500.00 

Covered space building permit, per square foot  0.20  0.35 

Uncovered space building permit, per square foot  0.10  0.20 

Residential re-inspection fee  60.00   

Residential minimum permit fee  60.00  100.00 

Residential electrical/plumbing/HVAC mechanicals, per trade area when purchased with a building 
permit:  

 

 0—1,000 square feet, each  30.00   

 1,001—2,000 square feet, each  40.00   

 2,001—3,000 square feet, each  50.00   

 3,001—4,000 square feet, each  60.00   

 4,001 square feet and up + $10.00 for every additional 1,000 sq. ft., each  60.00   

Residential certificate of occupancy fee  40.00  50.00 

Generator permit inspection fee  100.00 

Accessory building permit inspection fee  200.00 

Sec. 2-110. - Fee schedule.  

Commercial plan review—Building permits:               Current   Proposed  

Commercial development permit fee  200.00  400.00 

1st site plan review, + $5.00 per lot   200.00   

2nd site plan review, + $5.00 per lot  100.00   

Commercial building plan review fee  200.00  1,000.00 



Covered space building permit, per square foot  0.20  0.35 

Uncovered space building permit, per square foot  0.10  0.20 

Commercial re-inspection fee  100.00   

Commercial minimum permit fee  100.00   

Commercial electrical/plumbing/HVAC mechanicals, per trade area when purchased with a building 
permit:  

 

 0—1,000 square feet, each  40.00   

 1,001—2,000 square feet, each  50.00   

 2,001—3,000 square feet, each  60.00   

 3,001—4,000 square feet, each  70.00   

 4,001 square feet and up, + $10.00 for every additional 1,000 sq. ft., each  70.00   

Commercial certificate of occupancy fee  100.00   

Commercial building permit inspection fee  530.00 

  

For required land disturbance permits and statutory fees associated with land disturbing activity, refer to 
subsection 2-110(10) below.  

c.  Other permits and fees:        Current        Proposed 

Demolition, flat rate (each structure)  50.00   

Swimming pool permit inspection fee  325.00 

Swimming pool (in-ground/private), per sq. ft.  0.20  0.35 

Swimming pool deck (aboveground/private), per sq. ft.  0.10  0.20 

Moved structures, flat rate  200.00   

Communication tower (new) permit fee:  500.00   

Communication tower (new) review fee:  200.00   



Minor plat review fee  50.00 

Communication tower (co-locate and repair), plus mechanical fees  250.00   

Stop work order administrative fee  100.00   

Stop work per day fine (residential and commercial)     50.00 

Work commencing before permit issuance, plus required permit fee  
100% of usual 
permit fee  

 

Retaining wall > 6 ft building permit   250.00 

Retaining wall >6 ft plan review fee  750.00 

Retaining wall > 6 ft inspection fee  200.00 

Residential building, commercial building, commercial development, residential 
development, swimming pool permit renewal fee 

 
1st 200.00 

2nd 400.00 

  

(9)  Signs (chapter 105):  

105-5(h). Sign permit fee  100.00  

105-8(c). Sign variance application fee  300.00  

105-40(b). Temporary sign permit fee, per month  30.00  

105-41(m). Banner over public property fee, per month, in addition to sign permit fee  50.00  

105-43(c). Banner in commercial district, per display period, in addition to sign permit fee  30.00  

Sign permit inspection fee 100.00 

  

(10)  Soil erosion and sedimentation control / Land development   (chapter 106):  

106-5(b)(3). Residential land disturbance permit fee, + statutory fee per acre  $200.00  

106-5(b)(3). Commercial land disturbance permit fee + statutory fee per acre  400.00  



Residential land disturbing activity statutory fee, disturbing less than one acre  No charge  

106-5(b)(4). Land disturbing activity statutory fee (residential or commercial), per acre of land-disrupting 
activity or any part thereof ($40.00 to city and $40.00 to state) 

40.00 RES 

40.00 COM 

Residential development preliminary and final plat plan review fee of $40.00 per lot for developments less 
than 50 lots and minimum fee $1,000.00 

 

Residential development preliminary and final plat plan review fee of $25.00 per lot for developments 
greater than 50 lots 

 

Commercial civil development plan review fee  $1,000.00 

Commercial as built civil development plan review 1,000.00 

Commercial land development permit inspection fee 500.00 

Residential development preliminary plat development fee $20.00 per lot with $200.00 minimum  

Residential development final plat development fee $10.00 per lot with $100.00 minimum  

Residential land disturbance statutory fee $40.00 per disturbed acre 40.00 

Residential land development permit inspection fee 500.00 

 

(11)  Stormwater management (chapter 107):  

107-57. Stormwater management permit application and plan review fee, per disturbed acre  $10.00  

 

(12) Zoning, variance, appeal, change of zoning condition and annexation requests (appendix A), certificate of 
appropriateness : 

a. The fee for all rezoning applications regardless of zoning category is the base amount set forth in the 
table below plus $50.00 per acre for each acre or part of an acre beyond one acre in the subject tract with a 
maximum fee of $5,000.00 regardless of the number of acres involved. 

b. Any required public notices to adjoining landowners shall be charged to the applicant at the current U.S. 
Postal Service rate in addition to the fees stated below. 

 



 

Current        Proposed  

Zoning Action Requested:   

AP  $250.00   

R-1  250.00   

R-2  250.00   

R-3  350.00   

R-3R  350.00   

R-6  350.00   

RHMT  250.00   

PUD  500.00   

TB  500.00   

PCS  350.00   

O  500.00   

CBD  500.00   

NB  500.00   

LI  500.00   

HB  500.00   

CIR  500.00   

INST  500.00   

RA  500.00   

Variance, per ordinance amendment 300.00   

Conditional use permit  300.00   



Appeals and change of zoning conditions  500.00   

Postponement, per occurrence  300.00   

Annexation, plus applicable rezoning fee  250.00   

Administrative fee, plus cost of all mailings  100.00   

  



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES  

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     19     
 

 

 



CITY MANAGER REPORT 

SEPTEMBER 15 FOR SEPTEMBER 2021 MEETING 

COVID Update: We are averaging about 38 new cases per day. in Dawson County. We have had 50 COVID 
deaths thus far in Dawson County. The hospital at Northside Forsyth and NE GA Medical Center are 
bursting at the seams. Normally, a med unit arrives at the ER and spends about 15-20 minutes 
transferring the patient into the care of the hospital, now the rates is 3-4 hours. That means a med unit is 
out of the county for 3-4 hours longer as the ER uses it in essence as an additional ER room. On most 
days, all four med units are in transport with COVID patients, sometimes more than one patient from the 
same location. Our hospital region is the only one in the state that continues an upward trend. At the 
present time no city personnel are absent due to COVID. We continue to practice our pandemic protocols 
to protect our outstanding personnel and customers. We are working on revisions to this portion of our 
Personnel Manual to bring it in line with the CDC guidelines.  
 
Law Enforcement: After I sent an email of concern for lack of coverage of Main Street Park, we have seen 
a tremendous increase in officer presence resulting in a number of juveniles being criminally trespassed 
from the park. One of the officers to be assigned to the City has started some work in the park while 
completing his FTO program.  
 
Fire Flows: In 2018, the state law changed regarding required fire flows increasing the flow rates to a 
minimum of 1,000 to 1,500 GPM. We have areas within the City that do not meet that requirement. We 
have an engineering company preparing a fire flow model so we can determine what needs to be done to 
increase these critical flow rates, such as, booster pumps, looping certain lines, increasing pipe diameter 
of certain lines, etc.  As soon as we get the models prepared, we will be submitting recommendations for 
what action to take. We will most likely recommend that funding come from ARP and/or SPLOST VII. 
 
Turner Annexation: The BOE decided not to annex their Allen Street maintenance facility into the city. 
With that decision, the Turner’s have reduced the number of acres requested for annexation. They have 
requested annexation and rezoning of only 32.937 acres and a corresponding reduction in residential 
density. They submitted their revised letter and site plan just prior to the start of the 09/13 Planning 
Commission. The PC voted to deny the request. 
 
GRHOF/Dawsonville History Museum: The exterior work bringing water and sewer to the Pirkle Room is 
complete, as is the new concrete floor. We will begin work on framing of the warming kitchen area in the 
immediate future. Exhibit improvements continue in the museum. The GRHOF held a most successful 
Labor Day Car Show in September. Efforts are underway to attain a grant from state ARP funding for the 
facility. Planning continues for the Ghost Tour and Veteran’s Day Car Show. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Plant: Turnipseed Engineering is developing the final design as well as the USDA 
funding package for this priority project. They are recommending moving the effluent portion further 
upstream on Flat Creek nearer the current plant. This will save the installation of one pump station. We 
await EPD’s approval. Additionally, it will be one of several submittals for possible partial or complete 
funding of the Governor’s Infrastructure funds.  
 



Water System Upgrades: EPD has approved our well location and we have instructed Turnipseed 
Engineering to begin preparing the design and bid package for what will become well #112.  
 
Main Street Park Skate Park: September’s Food Truck Night was held on September 3rd and along with it 
the ribbon cutting for the new and very popular skate park at 5 PM. We provided prizes to participants, 
such as, two skate decks, t-shirts and key change giveaways, and demonstrations from 5-7 by professional 
skater Jud Heald. The event was a great success, and the skate park continues to be heavily used, 
sometimes before daylight in the morning and well after dark in the evening. Our next Food Truck Night is 
scheduled for October 1st and will be held at the Farmer’s Market. 
 
Allen Street Sidewalk Extension: Summit Construction continues work on this sidewalk project. This is a 
SPLOST VI funded project. 
 
Tree Removal Maple Street at Voting Precinct: Due to the tree dying, the beautiful oak at the corner of 
the voting precinct lawn on Maple Street had to be removed. The professional removal was completed on 
09/14. 
 
Paving Patchwork on Maple and Stegall Streets: We completed $7,000.00 patchwork paving on Maple 
Street and Stegall in hopes of tiding us over until SPLOST VII funds are available for full depth reclamation. 
We will also be patching some areas in the vicinity of Hightower Academy. 
 
Paving Projects: The joint paving City – County paving of Howser Mill IGA is complete, and we hope this 
project can start in September.  
 
The paving of Main Street, Memory Lane and Jach Heard Street should start about the same time as the 
Howser Mill paving project. This is a City project and will be paid out of SPLOST VI. 
 
We have instructed Turnipseed Engineering to begin engineering work on priority roads to be paved out 
of SPLOST VII. This will speed up the process once those funds are available. These roads would include, 
Maple Street, Richmond Drive, the Pearl Chambers area, Bear’s Den, Stonewall subdivision, Rain Hill 
subdivision, Stegal, and Burt’s Crossing I. We will have them engineer Creekstone Phase I as well for 
pavement work covered by infrastructure fees.  
 
Main Street Park: Progress continues as we work to increase the amenities and operation of this 
wonderful addition to the city, including:  

• The dog park project continues as we work with our Eagle Scout candidate. Trees have been 
planted, benches installed and some of the signage erected.  

• With the delay involved with the trail IGA with the county, the Eagle Scout candidate had to 
withdraw this project from his application and select a project elsewhere. We have met with the 
Fire Chief and have resolved the bridge location issues. The property transfer from DDA to the 
City is complete. The County attorney should be reaching out to the City attorney soon. 

• The Eagle Scout candidate continues his work designing and constructing a lending library that 
will be installed in the vicinity of the Main Street Park Playground.  

• All 14 new exercise stations are installed and receiving a great deal of use.  
• The shelter floors are complete, installation of hand and guard rails is underway. We are awaiting 



cost estimates from GA Power for installation of electricity. Their efforts are being hampered by 
response to hurricanes.  

 
Administrative Offices for Utility and Public Works: For those of you that have visited our maintenance 
facility, you have seen that the “offices” for Jacob and Trampas are just desks placed in a communal 
kitchen. This is not practical. These two department heads together supervise eight personnel and 
tremendous operations. They need private space that have reliable computers that aren’t getting covered 
with dust from the shop. They need a room for storage of maps, blueprints, and files. A place to plan and 
schedule along with meeting with employees they supervise. We are asking them to manage a 
considerable part of our operation, where the rubber meets the road, but are handicapping their efforts 
by not providing them what they need. The old house and adjoining structure at the barn have been 
demolished. Staff rented a track hoe and dumpsters in a very short time, demolished the house and 
outbuilding and loaded the debris which were hauled away in dumpsters. We are now looking at options 
to use this space for these offices. We will be costing out pouring a slab and foundation for construction 
of a 30’ X 40’ metal or wood structure or installation of a modular building that would house two offices, 
space for storage of files, maps, and blueprints, as well as a rest room and small space for meetings. Then 
in the barn kitchen, we will create one clean space that will have a communal computer for personnel to 
use.  
 
Personnel: Several staff have taken some well-deserved time off this month.  
 
Leak Adjustments: 7 accounts this month 

Water   $57.98 Sewer   $90.76 

Total     $147.74 

03-2020 thru 12-2020     $4,473.37 

01-2021 thru YTD     $3.386.84 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/20/2021       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2021  

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS  
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Robin Gazaway, Finance Administrator    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   20   
 

 

 








	1. 09.20.2021 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting 
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2 08.16.2021 MINUTES.draft
	08.16.2021 ES Affidavit.pdf
	IGA_Howser Mill Road Improvement Project.pdf

	7b. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items LETTER OF SUPPORT - DHM
	7b. 2 City Letter of support GRHOF Grant reeq82421
	7c. Executive Summary For Agenda Items LETTER OF SUPPORT - BROADBAND
	7c. Support of COC Broadband
	7d. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items GARBAGE 2021
	7d. 2 2022 Solid Waste Collection Services_Red Oak Contract
	CONTRACT FOR SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE
	1. DEFINITIONS
	1.1 Brown Goods:  Those items of furniture, such as sofas, chairs, tables, carpets and other large items, which cannot reasonably be placed in a residential garbage can or 95-gallon cart.
	1.2 Cart:  A rollout receptacle for Residential Solid Waste with a capacity of not less than 95 gallons, constructed of plastic, metal or fiberglass, having handles of adequate strength for lifting, and having a tight fitting lid capable of preventing...
	1.3 C & D Materials:  Waste materials generated by the construction, remodeling, repair or demolition of residential, commercial or other structures.
	1.4 Commercial Premises:  All non-Residential Premises, public or private, requiring solid waste collection within the incorporated area of the City, including commercial, industrial, institutional, and governmental premises.
	1.6 Commercial Solid Waste:  All Garbage, Rubbish and other acceptable waste generated by a Commercial Premises and all C & D Materials, excluding Hazardous Waste.
	1.7 City:  City of Dawsonville, Georgia.
	1.8 Curbside:  The location adjacent to the traveled portion of a publicly owned roadway designated by the Contractor for the placement of Carts and other solid waste for collection.
	1.9 Agreement:  This contract agreement, including exhibits and any amendments thereto, agreed to by the City and the Contractor during the term of the Agreement.
	1.10 Contractor:  Red Oak Sanitation, Inc.
	1.11 Garbage:  Solid waste consisting of putrescible animal and vegetable waste materials resulting from the handling, preparation, cooking and consumption of food, including waste materials from markets, storage facilities, handling and sale of produ...
	1.12 Hazardous Waste:  Any solid waste identified or listed as a hazardous waste by any agency of the State of Georgia or the administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency pursuant to the federal Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the...
	1.13 Residential Premises:  A dwelling within the incorporated area of the City occupied by a person or group of persons, including single family homes, duplexes, triplexes, quadraplexes, and mobile homes whether such mobile homes are registered as ve...
	1.14 Residential Solid Waste:  All Garbage and Rubbish generated by a Residential Premises, excluding automobile parts, tires, C & D Materials, Yard Waste, White Goods, Hazardous Waste, or other unacceptable materials.
	1.15 Rubbish:  Non-putrescible solid waste consisting of paper, rags, cardboard, cartons, , , plastics, glass, crockery, metal cans or other such residential waste.
	1.16 White Goods:  Refrigerators, ranges, washers, water heaters, and other similar domestic appliances.
	1.17 Yard Debris:  Leaves, brush, grass clippings; shrubs, tree prunings, and other vegetative materials from the maintenance of yards, lawns and landscaping at Residential Premises.

	2. SCOPE OF WORK
	3. COLLECTION
	3.1 Service Provided.
	(a) Contractor shall collect Garbage and Rubbish from each Residential Premises and Commercial Hand-load Customer one (1) time per week at Curbside.  Once per week curbside service shall consist of the one ninety-five (95) gallon cart supplied by the ...
	(b) The Contractor shall collect up to four (4) bags or bundles of Yard Debris placed Curbside on the first Monday of each month from the Residential Premises.  All yard waste must be cut and bundled in sections no greater than three (3) feet in lengt...
	(c) Contractor will not take any construction debris, rock, dirt, sod, mulch, railroad ties, concrete, paint, oil, logs, or trees.  Contractor does not offer a tree removal service.
	(d) The day of collection shall be Monday unless otherwise mutually agreed by Contractor and City.
	(e) The occupant of the Residential Premises and Commercial Hand-load Customer shall bag garbage and rubbish, and place only Garbage and Rubbish in the proper container.
	(f) The occupant of the Residential Premises and Commercial Hand-load Customer shall place the container(s) at Curbside by 6:00 AM on the designated collection day.  The occupant of the Residential Premises shall place Yard Debris in paper bags design...
	(g) Contractor shall not be responsible for collection of Garbage and Rubbish not placed in the proper container.
	(h) Contractor shall not be responsible for any container, or Yard Debris, not in the proper location at time of service, which is Curbside.
	(i) Occupants of Residential Premises and Commercial Hand-load Customer may request more special services at a price to be agreed upon by the occupant and Contractor and paid monthly by the occupant directly to contractor via ACH.

	3.2 Elderly and Disabled.  Contractor shall provide side-door pick-up to elderly or disabled residents as designated by the City who are physically unable to place container at Curbside on pick-up day.  In no case will the quantity of persons receivin...
	3.3 Location of Containers for Collection.  The Container and bagged Yard Debris shall be placed at Curbside for collection.  Curbside refers to that portion of right-of-way adjacent to paved or traveled City roadways.  Containers shall be placed as c...

	4. ROUTES AND HOURS OF COLLECTION OPERATION
	4.1 Hours of Operation.  Collection of Residential Solid Waste shall not start before 6:00 AM nor continue after 7:00 PM on the same day.
	4.2 Routes of Collection.  Collection routes shall be established by the Contractor.  Contractor shall submit a map designating the collection routes to the City for its approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  The Contractor may ...
	4.3 Holidays.  The following shall be holidays for the purpose of this Contract:
	4.4 Complaints.  All complaints shall be made directly to the Contractor and shall be given prompt and courteous attention.  In the case of alleged missed scheduled collections, the Contractor shall investigate and, if such allegations are verified, s...
	4.5 Containers.   The Contractor agrees to be back charged for trash containers that require replacement due to the negligence and/or abuse of Contractor’s personnel during refuse collection.
	4.6 Collection Equipment and Personnel.  The Contractor shall provide an adequate number of vehicles for regular collection services.  All vehicles and other equipment shall be kept in good repair, appearance, and in a sanitary condition at all times....
	4.7 Office.  The Contractor shall maintain an office or such other facilities through which it can be contacted.  It shall be equipped with sufficient local service telephones and shall have a responsible person in charge from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. d...
	4.8 Access.  The Contractor shall be required to provide collection services to all Residential Premises located on roadways accessible to standard waste collection vehicles.  The City shall maintain all publicly-owned roads and bridges in a condition...

	5. DISPOSAL
	5.1 Disposal.  All Garbage, Rubbish and Yard Debris collected for disposal by the Contractor shall be disposed of in a fully permitted, Sub-title D Municipal Solid Waste Landfill with tipping fees paid by the Contractor.  Should tipping fees at the la...

	6. COMPENSATION
	6.1 Rates of Compensation for One (1) Year Rate Period.  Contractor shall be paid by the City for solid waste collection, Yard Debris removal, and disposal services provided hereunder at the rate of $13.40 per month per address (Residential or Commerc...
	6.2 Renewal; Rates of Compensation for Subsequent One (1) Year Rate Periods.  Upon the mutual agreement of the City and Contractor, the parties may renew this Agreement for additional terms.  Prior to the end of the initial one (1) year term of this A...
	6.3 Rate Adjustments Due to Significant Changes.  The rates set forth in Section 6.1 shall be fixed for the initial one (1) year term of this Agreement, and shall only be adjusted to compensate Contractor for:
	(a) Any change in Governmental laws, ordinances, regulations, assessments, fees or taxes that require Contractor to incur additional costs in the performance of services pursuant to this Agreement (Changes in Law), including changes in disposal fees d...
	(b) Due to the volatility of the oil market.  Contractor reserves the right to initiate a monthly fuel/environmental fee to offset oil market changes if diesel reaches or exceeds $3.50 per gallon.  The formula for calculating such fee is $.10 per cust...

	6.4 City to Act as Collector.  The City under the base bid shall submit statements and collect from all Residential Units and Commercial Hand-load Premises for services provided by the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement, except for those extra serv...
	6.5 Delinquent and Closed Accounts.  Upon written notice sent  by the City, the Contractor shall discontinue refuse collection service at any Residential or Commercial Premises.  Upon further written notification by the City, the Contractor shall resu...
	6.6 Contractor Billings to City.  The Contractor shall bill the City on, or before, the first of each month which collection service will be provided, and the City shall issue payment within fifteen (15) days of receipt of said bill..  Such billing an...

	7. NON-DISCRIMINATION
	8. INDEMNITY
	9. FORCE MAJEURE
	10. LICENSES AND TAXES
	11. TERM
	12. REPORTS
	13. INSURANCE
	The Contractor shall at all times during the Agreement maintain in full force and effect Employer’s Liability, Workmen’s Compensation, Public Liability, and Property Damage Insurance, including contractual liability coverage with a combined limit of n...

	14. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW
	15. ASSIGNMENT
	16. EXCLUSIVE CONTRACT
	17. OWNERSHIP
	18. TERMINATION AND ATTORNEY FEES
	18.1 In the event of an alleged material breach of this Contract, the City shall provide written notice of such breach to the Contractor.  If within 20 days from receipt of such notice, the Contractor has either failed to correct the condition or reac...
	(i) provide written notice to the Contractor that the Contract will be terminated;
	(ii) extend the time to allow Contractor to cure the breach; or
	(iii) impose sanctions or other remedies without terminating the Contract.

	18.2 Costs.  In the event that either party is required to take any legal action to enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement because of the breach of or failure to perform any term or condition by the other party, the breaching party agrees ...

	19. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
	19.1 Choice of Law.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed for all purposes by the laws of the State of Georgia, excluding the laws applicable to conflicts or choice of law.
	19.2 E-verify.  Contactor shall execute the E-Verify affidavit attached hereto as Exhibit A.
	19.3 Entire Agreement.  This instrument and the attached exhibit contain the entire agreement between the parties relating to the rights herein granted and the obligations herein assumed.  Any oral representation or modifications concerning this instr...
	19.4 Severability.  If any part of this Agreement for any reason is declared invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of any remaining portion, which remaining portion shall remain in force and effect as if this Contract had been executed ...
	19.5 Captions.  The titles or headings preceding any section or paragraph are for reference and convenience only and shall be in no way construed to be a material part of this Agreement.
	19.6 City’s Authority.  The parties signing this Contract on behalf of the City have been authorized to do so by specific action of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Dawsonville adopted in open meeting and of record in its official minutes.
	19.7 .Notices. All notices under the terms of this Agreement shall be hand delivered, delivered by Certified Mail or delivered by nationally recognized overnight delivery service to the address set forth hereinbelow or at such other future address as ...

	EXHIBIT “A”

	7e. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY HALL CLOSURE
	8. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items SAFETY GRANT
	9. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
	10. 2 Announcement of Award
	10. 4 AFRA, Finance Department
	11. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items Form MTN MOONSHINE FESTIVAL
	12. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items BUDGET PREP-AIRPORT
	12. 2 Task Order 2 - Estimated Budget Document
	13. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items ARC
	14. 1 Executive Summary For  2022 MEETINGS CALENDAR
	14. 2 2022 Meeting Calendar Notes
	14. 3 2022 Meeting Calendar
	1 January
	2 February
	3 March
	4 April
	5 May
	6 June
	7 July
	8 August
	9 September
	10 October
	11 November
	12 December 2022

	15.1 Executive Summary For NAMING ROADS
	15. 2 Map of Roads
	16. 1 Executive Summary VACCINE INCENTIVE(002)
	17. 1 Maple Hill Drive detetntion Pond Executive Summary
	18. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items PROPSED FEE CHANGES
	18. 2 W-S RATES
	20210915133834201.pdf
	20210915133847467.pdf

	18. 3 Fee_schedule.
	Sec. 2-110. Fee schedule.

	18. 4  2021 Proposed Fee Schedule
	19. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	19. 2 092021 CITY MANAGER REPORT
	20. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR
	20. 2  Finance Reports



